

Selkirk House, 1 Museum Street, 10-12 Museum Street, 35 41 New Oxford Street and 16A 18 West Central Street, London, WC1A 1J R LabTech Investments Limited

> Whole Life Cycle Carbon Assessment Rev 00 09/02/2021

Selkirk House, 1 Museum Street, 10-12 Museum Street, 35 41 New Oxford Street and 16A 18 West Central Street, London, WC1A 1J R Whole Life Cycle Carbon Assessment | Rev 00

Scotch Partners LLP

Building Services Engineering | Sustainability | Acoustics

90 High Holborn London WC1V 6LJ

+44 (0) 203 544 5400 www.scotchpartners.com

Project Particulars

Client Name: LabTech Investments Limited

Project Name: Selkirk House, 1 Museum Street, 10-12 Museum Street, 35 41 New Oxford Street

and 16A 18 West Central Street, London, WC1A 1J R

Project Number:

Document Reference:

Disclaimer

This document has been prepared by Scotch Partners LLP for the sole use of our Client and in accordance with generally accepted consultancy principles, the budget for fees and the terms of reference agreed between Scotch Partners LLP and our Client. Any information provided by third parties and referred to herein has not been checked or verified by Scotch Partners LLP, unless otherwise expressly stated in the document. No third party may rely upon this document without prior and express written agreement of Scotch Partners LLP.

Revision History

Revision	Description	Date	Prepared By	Checked By
00	First Draft	09/01/2021	Danielle Lowson	Kirsten Elder
01	Second Draft	11/05/2021	Seb Dimarco	Danielle Lowson

Contents

1	Executive Summary2
1.1	Estimated Whole Life Carbon Emissions2
1.2	Energy Strategy2
1.3	Circular Economy3
1.4	Conclusion
2	Introduction4
2.1	Development Description4
2.2	Background to whole life cycle assessments4
2.3	RICS Whole Life Carbon
2.4	UK Green Building Council (GBC) Net Zero Carbon5
2.5	The Circular Economy5
3	Methodology6
3.1	Assessment Scope6
3.2	Life Cycle Assessment Impacts7
3.3	Data Sources7
3.4	Current and Future Carbon Emissions8
3.5	Context of grid carbonisation projections9
4	Results
4.1	Embodied Carbon Emissions11
4.2	Operational Carbon Emissions11
4.3	Assessment 1 – Estimated Whole Life Carbon (WLC) Emissions
4.4	Assessment 2 – Estimated Whole Life Carbon (WLC) Emissions (decarbonisation) 12
5	Opportunities for reducing WLC
5.1	Maximise Recycled Content13
5.2	Influence of Product Specification13
5.3	Actions Taken to Reduce Whole Life-Cycle Carbon Emissions13
6	Conclusion

List of Tables and Figures

Table 1 - Summary of Whole Life Carbon Emissions	2
Table 2 - Types of data required for a WLC assessment	
Table 3- Embodied Carbon Results	
Table 4- Operational Carbon Emissions Results	
Table 5- Assessment 1 WLC Results	
Table 6- Assessment 2 WLC Results	
Table 7- Summary of Results	

Figure 1 - UKGBC Advancing Net Zero Carbon Framework Approach5

1 Executive Summary

Scotch Partners LLP have been appointed to undertake a Whole Life Carbon (WLC) Assessment for the 1 Museum Street development in the London Borough of Camden.

The assessment has been undertaken in line with the guidance given in the draft guidance provided by the GLA in the Whole Life-Cycle Carbon Assessments guidance Preconsultation draft, April 2020. This report should be read in conjunction with the GLA Whole Life Carbon Assessment Template issued in Microsoft Excel Format.

1.1 Estimated Whole Life Carbon Emissions

Table 1 Summary of Whole Life Carbon Emissions, using carbon factors from SAP10 and a decarbonised grid scenario.

Building Element	Assessment 1 (SAP 10 (kgCO2e)) Assessment 2 (Decarbonisation) (kgCO2e)
1 Substructure	6415758.22	6415758.22
2.1 – 2.4 Superstructure	8058768.05	8058768.05
2.5 – 2.6 Superstructure	5588277.89	5588277.89
2.7-2.8 Superstructure	44029.98	44029.98
Finishes	523710.69	523710.69
Fittings, furnishings and equipment	4700792.92	4700792.92
Services (MEP)	3886420.38	3886420.38
External Works	95193.22	95193.22
Site Energy and Water	76,251,829.99	59,651,387.99
Total kgCO2e	105,948,935.4	89,348,493.43

Table 1 - Summary of Whole Life Carbon Emissions

1.2 Energy Strategy

With an emphasis on the global climate crisis many local authorities (including Camden and GLA), institutions and businesses have declared a 'Climate Emergency'. There is a growing commitment to achieving Net Zero Carbon (NZC) buildings by 2030, meaning many new developments need to consider now how far they can go to design in features to enable the lowest carbon performance possible.

The energy strategy for the project is a key mechanism for reducing Whole Life Carbon of the development. A passive design strategy has been proposed, which features enhanced fabric elements for the proposed development with consideration for compatibility with the façade design and geometry, construction type and method.

1.3 Circular Economy

The proposed development has taken care to consider Circular Economy in its design. The Circular Economy statement details the strategy for recovery of materials in line with the circular economy model.

1.4 Conclusion

This report has set out the Whole Life Carbon emissions estimated for the site. This follows the GLA Whole Life-Cycle Carbon Assessments, Pre-consultation draft guidance, 2020.

2 Introduction

Scotch Partners have prepared this Whole Life Cycle Carbon Assessment on behalf of LabTech Investments Limited, referred to hereafter as "the Applicant", in support of the outline planning application for the Selkirk House, 1 Museum Street, 10-12 Museum Street, 35 41 New Oxford Street and 16A 18 West Central Street development, and referred to hereafter as "the Site".

The aim of this assessment is to assess the WLC for the Proposed Developments, defined as 'those carbon emissions resulting from the construction and the use of a building over its entire life, including its demolition and disposal.' This assessment captures the operational carbon emissions for the Proposed Development from both regulated and unregulated energy use, as well as its embodied carbon emissions, i.e. those associated with raw material extraction, manufacture and transport of building materials, construction and the emissions associated with maintenance, repair and replacement as well as dismantling, demolition and eventual material disposal.

This report should be read in conjunction with the 'GLA Whole Life Cycle Carbon Assessment Template' issued in Microsoft Excel format.

2.1 Development Description

Redevelopment of Selkirk House, 166 High Holborn and 1 Museum Street following the substantial demolition of the existing NCP car park and former Travelodge Hotel to provide a mixed-use scheme, providing office, residential, and town centre uses at ground floor level. Works of demolition, remodelling and extension to 10-12 Museum Street, 35-41 New Oxford Street, and 16A-18 West Central Street to provide further town centre ground floor uses and residential floorspace, including affordable housing provision. Provision of new public realm including a new pedestrian route through the site to link West Central Street with High Holborn. Relocation of cycle hire docking stations on High Holborn

2.2 Background to whole life cycle assessments

Some studies have historically suggested that 10 - 20% of the total carbon emissions for buildings over their lifetime are due to embodied carbon. With increasing energy efficiency within buildings and an increasingly decarbonised electricity supply, building operational carbon emission are being acknowledged to be rapidly reducing. As this occurs, the significance of embodied carbon emissions increases and the potential for reduction of overall carbon emissions through structural design choice and material selection becomes greater. The WLC Emissions are those emissions resulting from the construction and use of a building over its entire life, including its demolition and disposal. Calculating the WLC emissions will provide a capture of the buildings operational carbon emissions (from both regulated and unregulated energy use) as week as the embodied carbon emissions.

2.3 RICS Whole Life Carbon

The RICS professional statement: Whole Life Carbon Assessment (WLC) for the Build Environment, released in 2017, seeks to standardise WLC assessment and enhance consistency in outputs by providing guidance on implementing the broad appraisal methodology set out in EN 15978: Sustainability of Construction Works. The Greater London Authority have adopted the RICS WLC methodology in their guidance methodology

for Whole Life Carbon assessment of referable planning applications.

2.4 UK Green Building Council (GBC) Net Zero Carbon

As part of the definition of Net Zero, the UK Green Building Council has developed a Framework Definition that includes embodied carbon emissions, and this definition is widely being used to develop a roadmap to the 2050 Net Zero target.



Figure 1 - UKGBC Advancing Net Zero Carbon Framework Approach

All Modules referred to are from EN15978 Sustainability of construction works – Assessment of environmental performance of buildings – Calculation method



Net Zero Carbon – Construction (1.1)

Net Zero Carbon - Operational Energy (1.2)

Net Zero Carbon – Whole Life (future development) (1.3)

2.5 The Circular Economy

Currently, the construction industry largely follows a single use "take-make-dispose" model. In order to reduce the negative impact, the industry is having on the environment, and participate in the wider move to long-term sustainable buildings, it is vital the construction industry moves across to a more circular model, in which the value in materials and buildings are both realised and kept in the model for as long as possible.

3 Methodology

3.1 Assessment Scope

The assessment of Whole Life Carbon (WLC) emissions consists of the following sections: total operational carbon emissions (regulated plus unregulated); embodied carbon emissions; and any future potential carbon emissions 'benefits', post end-of-life, including benefits from reuse and recycling of building structure and materials.

This assessment has been undertaken in line with the draft GLA guidance for undertaking WLC Assessments and therefore in line with the RICS Professional Statement: Whole Life Carbon Assessment for the Built Environment.

Operational Carbon Emissions

In line with the draft GLA guidance, the operational carbon emissions are calculated based on the Part L assessments undertaken for the Proposed Development as part of the Energy Strategy for planning. This encompasses carbon emissions related to both regulated and unregulated energy uses (in line with Part L definitions), accumulated over a 60-year study period.

Embodied Carbon Assessment and end of life emissions

To assess the embodied carbon for the project a Life Cycle Assessment (LCA) tool – E-tool – has been used to make allocations for the anticipated materials quantities in an inventory analysis. The materials are represented within the model by using materials with associated Environmental Product Declarations (EPDs). EPDs are produced by manufacturers and identify the carbon emissions of a product. By scheduling the materials proposed for the development, the overall carbon emissions can be approximated.

It should be noted here that the LCA tool has a limited database of materials. In the scenario where a specified material isn't included in the database, the most similar material in terms of material composition is selected instead.

In line with standard UK practice, the LCA process and results included by this report have been assessed in line with BS 15978:2011 and the RICS Professional Statement: Whole Life Carbon assessment for the built environment. All EPDs used have been produced in line with the requirements of BS EN 15804:2012. Hence, each material has been assessed against the following lifecycle stage:

- A1-A3: Product stage
- A4: Material transportation to site
- B4-B5: Replacement and maintenance
- C1-C4: End of life

Together with these stages, the contribution of life cycle stage A5 has also been explored separately, giving an estimate of the emissions related to the construction. I.e. the electrical consumption and waste disposal.

In line with the draft GLA guidance, the assessment includes the following elements:

- Demolition
- Facilitating works
- Substructure
- Superstructure (frame, upper floors, roof, stairs and ramps, external walls, windows and external doors, internal walls and partitions, internal doors)
- Finishes
- Fittings, furnishings and equipment
- Building services
- Prefabricated buildings and building units
- Work to existing building
- External works (hard and soft landscaping, fencing, fixtures, drainage, services)

3.2 Life Cycle Assessment Impacts

A building Life Cycle Assessment considers a range of environmental indicators that assess the relevant overall impacts of the materials selections. Whilst ideally an LCA assessment would consider all environmental factors relevant to the product or material, due to lack of information in some cases, and lack of consensus in how to calculate Key Performance Indicators (KPIs) within the industry, not all environmental impacts can be considered.

Standard ratios are used to convert the various greenhouse gases into equivalent amounts of CO2. These ratios are based on the global warming potential (GWP) of each gas. GWP is a relative measure of how much a given mass of greenhouse gas is estimated to contribute to global warming over a given time interval – usually 100 years. It is expressed relative to carbon dioxide which is set as the baseline which other emitters are compared against, and which therefore has a GWP of 1.

This assessment thus reports on the embodied carbon of the development as 'global warming potential' with the annotation 'CO2 equivalent (CO2e)'.

3.3 Data Sources

There are a number of approaches to complete a building specific life cycle assessment. A flexible approach is needed when utilising a dataset of product specific environmental product declarations and more generic data calculated within the LCA tool.

Quantity Data	Material Data	Comments	Provided by
Cost Plan	Cost Plan	Cost plans can be useful for calculation of uncertain quantities which are not product specific, however often an allowance is made at early design stages which may reduce accuracy.	
Architectural Drawings and Area Schedule	Architecture Build-up	A more traditional and slower approach to determining quantity of building elements, if build-ups are available to support.	DSDHA Architects (Project Architect) EOC Engineers (Façade)
Structural Drawings and Schedule	Structural Layouts		Meindhart (Structural Engineers)
Mechanical and Electrical Schedules	M&E Specifications		Scotch Partners (M&E)

Table 2 - Types of data required for a WLC assessment

The assessment has utilised multiple data sources described above and is based on the level of detail available at the current stage of design.

The data for these sections has been based on available information provided by the design team. The same construction has been assumed throughout the development. At this stage, detailed drawings were not available for the project.

3.4 Current and Future Carbon Emissions

In line with the guidance given in the draft GLA guidance to Whole Life Carbon assessments, the assessment has been undertaken based on two sets of carbon emissions:

3.4.1 SAP 10

The first set of figures is based on the current status of the electricity grid and provides a point-in-time assessment. For materials manufactured in the UK, SAP 10 emission factors are used in line with the GLA's Energy Assessment Guidance. Products sourced from

outside the UK use data appropriate to the local energy grid at that location. This set of figures is used in the comparison to the WLC benchmarks.

3.4.2 Decarbonisation

It is also important to consider the potential longer-term decarbonisation of the electricity grid and how this may impact on design decisions. The second set of figures is therefore based on the expected decarbonisation of the electricity grid over the lifetime of the development (i.e. 60 years).

The RICS WLC guidance (2017) and the GLA WLC guidance (2020) documents makes reference to use of the "slow progression' scenario from the latest Future Energy Scenarios (FES) developed by the National Grid and makes reference to the 2015 edition of FES.

This edition has been revised each year, with the latest edition 2019 accounting for more recent developments in the future performance of the National Grid. As noted in Figure 5, the actual performance of the national grid (black line) deviated from the FES 2016 'Slow Progression' scenario and is inaccurate.

Therefore, for this Whole Life Carbon Assessment, the National Grid's 2019 edition of the 'Steady Progression' scenario was chosen as this more closely maps the departments of Business Energy and Industrial Strategy (BEIS) declared grid carbon projection.

3.5 Context of grid carbonisation projections

The Future Energy Scenarios (FES) document, produced by the National Grid, discusses how the UK's energy landscape is changing. FES 2020 makes projections of how the mix of generation in the grid is likely to change between now and 2050 – the year by which the Climate Change Act 2008 set the target of reducing the UK's CO2 emissions by 80% from 1990 levels. This target has now been revised to be Net Zero in light of the Committee on Climate Change's recent report and the declaration of a Climate Emergency.

FES discusses these projections in one of four scenarios and Figure 6 combines these future trajectories with the actual carbon intensity of the National Grid over the past 13 years. The reported emissions associated with electricity generation have fallen steeply since 2012 and in all cases, the FES 2018 scenarios see the carbon factor of electricity fall below 100 gCO2/kWh by 2035.

3.5.1 Shifting Focus

As the carbon emissions associated with the generation of electricity continue to reduce, the proportion of the UK's overall greenhouse gas emissions for which the electricity sector is responsible will fall. In fact, transport has now replaced energy supply as the greatest single contributor, responsible for 26% of national greenhouse gas emissions (BEIS).

The carbon factor of natural gas is likely to remain relatively static. With 85% of homes in the UK relying on gas to supply their heating and hot water, as well as a significant proportion of commercial buildings, heating buildings and industry represents an ever-greater proportion of UK emissions – 32% in 2015 (BEIS). In order for the UK to maintain a

trajectory sufficient to meet the 2050 decarbonisation target, focus must necessarily shift to other contributors.

The BEIS Clean Growth Strategy provides an indication of the direction the UK's energy policy is likely to take and "...sets out [the government's] proposals for decarbonising all sectors of the UK economy through the 2020s." This includes investing in infrastructure and mechanisms to facilitate a transition to low emission vehicles and strengthening the energy performance requirements of new and existing buildings.

4 Results

4.1 Embodied Carbon Emissions

The embodied carbon emissions for the development include use stages A1-A5. The results of which are displayed in Table 3 below.

Module	Module Description	Totals (KgCO2)
A1-A3	Product Stages	16,274,241
A4	Transport of Equipment and Materials	2,539,532
A5	Construction	1,036,655
	Total	19,859,428

The results of the Whole Life Carbon assessment displayed a total KgCO2e for the embodied carbon stages at 19,859,428 KgCO2e. This was dominated by the Product Stages (Modules A1-A3) with 16,274,241 KgCO2e.

4.2 Operational Carbon Emissions

Table 4- Operational Carbon Emissions Results

Category	Assessment 1 (SAP 10) (kgCO2e)	Assessment 2 (Decarbonisation) (kgCO2e)
Operational Energy	75,665,398	59,064,956
Operational Water	586,431	586,431
Total	76,251,829.99	59,651,387.99

The Operational Carbon emissions, summarised in Table 4, displays the differences between the two assessments. Assessment 2, based on the decarbonisation of the grid, displays a 21.78% drop in emissions for the operational stages compared to Assessment 1, based on SAP10 emissions.

4.3 Assessment 1 – Estimated Whole Life Carbon (WLC) Emissions

Table 5- Assessment 1 WLC Results

Module	Module Description	Totals (KgCO2)
A1-A3	Product Stages	16,274,241
A4	Transport of Equipment and Materials	2,539,532
A5	Construction	1,036,655
B1	Use	-9,255
B2B3	Maintenance and Repair	493,808
B4B5	Replacement and Refurbishment	6,987,867
B6	Operational Energy Use	75,665,398
B7	Operational Water Use	586,431
С	End Of Life	2,316,278

D	Benefits and Loads beyond the System Boundary	-134,110
	Total	105,948,935.43

Assessment 1 resulted in a total WLC emissions of 105,948,935.43 KgCO2e as displayed in Table 5. The table displays the breakdown in the different Modules, with the Operational Energy Module displaying the highest emissions with 75,665,398 KgCO2e, followed by the Product Stages with 16,274,241 KgCO2e.

4.4 Assessment 2 – Estimated Whole Life Carbon (WLC) Emissions (decarbonisation)

Table 6- Assessment 2 WLC Results

Module	Module Description	Totals (KgCO2)
A1-A3	Product Stages	16,274,241
A4	Transport of Equipment and Materials	2,539,532
A5	Construction	1,036,655
B1	Use	-9,255
B2B3	Maintenance and Repair	493,808
B4B5	Replacement and Refurbishment	6,987,867
B6	Operational Energy Use	59,064,956
B7	Operational Water Use	586,431
С	End Of Life	2,316,278
D	Benefits and Loads beyond the System Boundary	-134,110
	Total	89,348,493.43

Assessment 2 resulted in a total WLC emissions of 89,348,493.43 KgCO2e as displayed in Table 5. The table displays the breakdown in the different Modules, with the Operational Energy Module displaying the highest emissions with 59,064,956 KgCO2e, followed by the Product Stages with 16,274,241 KgCO2e.

5 Opportunities for reducing WLC

5.1 Maximise Recycled Content

By specifying products with high contents of recycled material, the product life cycle emissions can be significantly reduced, compared to products procured with virgin material. Therefore the embodied carbon can be reduced at the technical design stage through choice of materials.

5.2 Influence of Product Specification

The specific requirements of a product can significantly impact the carbon emissions at the product stage, often due the components of the product requiring more carbon intensive treatment and subsequent transportation prior to fabrication.

5.3 Actions Taken to Reduce Whole Life-Cycle Carbon Emissions

5.3.1 Energy Strategy

Primarily, the energy strategy for the project is a key mechanism for reducing whole life carbon of the development. In addition to a passive design approach, an 'all electric' energy strategy has been proposed, which features highly efficient heat pumps to deliver heating and hot water throughout the development. In addition to heat pumps working at greater efficiency than gas boilers, the heat pumps can take advantage of the projected decarbonisation of the national grid (previously discussed), and therefore is expected to be lower in whole life carbon terms than traditional gas boiler servicing strategy.

Comparing Assessment 1 (SAP10) and Assessment 2 (with decarbonisation) a 16,600,442 kgCO2e difference is estimated, representing 15.7% less reported for Assessment 2 compared to Assessment 1. This reinforces the use of projected decarbonisation scenarios in Whole Life Carbon assessments as proposed by the RICS Professional Statement for Whole Life Carbon Assessment. Due to the nature of the assessment, the difference between the two assessments is shown in the B6 Operational Energy Stage, owing to the decarbonisation of the grid in comparison of the two assessments.

5.3.2 Re-use and recovery

The Circular Economy statement details the strategy for recovery of materials in line with the circular economy model. The benefits of recovered materials have not been accounted for in the Whole Life Carbon Assessment at this stage due uncertainty in the quantity of replacement materials. It is understood that this would be accounted for at a more detailed stage of design when more accurate data is available.

6 Conclusion

This report sets out the Whole Life Carbon emissions estimated for the site. Table 7 below summarises the total Whole Life Carbon emissions estimated for the two assessments.

Table 7- Summary of Results		
Whole Life Carbon Scope	RICS Whole Life Carbon Emissions (kgCO2e)	
Assessment 1: SAP10	105,948,935.43	
Assessment 2: Decarbonisation Projection	89,348,493.43	

The life cycle module that constitutes the greatest proportion of the total Whole Life Carbon emissions of the development is Module B6: Operational Energy use at 71.5% of the total Whole Life Carbon emissions. The next highest category is the Product Stage (Modules A1-A3) with 15.4%.

By accounting for decarbonisation of the UK grid electricity (Assessment 2), the emissions from module B6: Operational energy is reduced from 71.5% to 66.2% (as a proportion of Whole Life Carbon). This is significant and confirms the importance of considering grid decarbonisation when completing carbon emissions assessments on a whole life basis.

It is worthy to note that the life cycle emissions from the Use & Replacement (B1-B7) and End of Life stages (C1-C4) will also benefit from future decarbonisation of the UK, European and Global supply chains, however the method for more accurately accounting for these life cycle stages requires further development.

Appendix 1- GLA WLC Assessment Spreadsheet

Pilipini alla	Design roote, 1 Auseum press, 10-12 Auseum press, 20-41 New Calcold Screet and 104 10 West Centers press, Work 12 In
Planning application reference number (If applicable)	
Una Type	A1, 81, C2
Brief description of the project	Redevelopment of Selikit Notaes, 165 High Holloom and 1 Maaum Street Islowing the autointal denoillon of the solid NCP as part and former Travelogie Holei to provide a mixed-use scheme, providing office, residential, and form cambe uses at ground foor level. Work of denoillon, exemokiling and elevation to 16-12 Maaum Street, 3-41 New Carbot Street, and 164-16 Ward Carbot Street browde
(m) AD	30267
Authors (organisation or individuals)	Scotch Partners
Date of assessment	3054/2021
Nationally recognized assessment method used	85 EN 15976, with additional guidance from RICS Professional Statement
Rafarence atudy period (If not 60 years)	This cell should only be filled in if the reference study period, i.e. the searced building life supertancy, escends or is less than 60 years. Application build shall be reference aduly period in this call. With the measurement should shall be done to 80 years, application may, if The redoces is, subtrim a subtrime in the modules 0, or and 1 be the solution features along period by cooping and pasting an additional 'OWP potential for all the-optic modules' tables, see being:
Software lool used	eTaoLCA
Source of cerbon data for materials and products	eTool database
EFO debites used	If using more than one detabase please list all

To a the spins the Way believe for the development. The Neural Point Administrant Tokicy are automatically populated here.														
	Module A1-A6	dda X1.42 Modela 21.65 Modela 65.67 Modela 01.04												
TOTAL kg COy	19,850,427 kg CO2e	7,472,420 kg 002a	76,251,829 kg CO2e	2,316,278 kg CO2e	-134,110 kg CO2									
TOTAL bg CO ₂ e/m ² GV	655.8438831	246.8533958	2519.305811	76.52817326	-4.43089988									
Comparison with WLC benchmarks (see Appendix 2 of the guidance)) Assessment 1 was used to inform design decision	(Copiain the reasons for any div	argences from WLC benchmark	a, including against the WLC expirational be	nchmarka)										
Yay sile opportunities and constraints in reducing WLC emissions	minimum The shall be indefined in bragand. You spontarily to the writer of matchine secured at shap 2 design during the shall design dayse.													
		Action		WLC reduction (kg CO ₂ e/m ² GIA)										
Summary of <u>sev</u> actions to reduce whole Be-cycle carbon emissions that have informed this assessment, including the WLC reductions	Limited actions available at this	stage, to be developed as desig	n progresses.											
	la l	In-etu poured concrete prefered where possible												
	Matienal efficiency prioritized in	design to reduce emissions												
		Further potential opports	antina	WLC reduction potential (kg COyekm ² GIA)	1									
	Further reduction in operational	energy consumption												
Specify further opportunities to reduce the development's whole life-	Putter LCA study planned for 1	States 4 to further optioneer LCA	anion											
cycle carbon enactions including the WLC reduction potential	Commitment to recycling of goo	ids at end of use												
	homean in recycled materials													

Califereined WLCC entrations (Assessment 2) N.E. The neurals from Assessment 2 before are automatically populated from.														
	Module A1-A5	Nodula 81-85	Nodule DI-87	Module C1-C4	Module D									
TOTAL kg CO ₂ e	19,850,427 kg CO2e	7,472,420 kg CO2k	59,651,387 kg CO2k	2,316,278 kg CO2e	-134,110 kg 002k									
TOTAL kg CO ₂ sim ² GIA	655.0438331	245.8833958	1970.839098	76.52017326	-1.43059965									
Comparison with WLC benchmarks (see Appendix 2 of the guidance) if Assessment 2 was used to inform design decisions	(Explain the reasons for an Please note that grid decar	y divergences from WL bonisation has not bee	C benchmarks, including n accounted for in the b	g against the WLC sepiration and marked	nel benchmarka.									

						Benefits and loads beyond the syste			
RATERIAL QUA	NTITY AND END OF LIFE SCENARIOS	Product and Construction Stage (Module A)		Assumptions made with respect to		boundary	(Nodule D)		
Building element category		Material type	Material quantity (kg)	cycles (Module B)	material and or the scenarios (Module C)	Estimated reusable materials	Estimated recyclable		
						(kg)	materials (kg)		
		Breakdown of material type in each category				0	25.64		
	Notsfexample	[Insert more lines if needed]	double kg	substructure, envelope, MEP services,	Declare 'end of He' scenario as per project's Circular Economy Determent	UN4	20.00		
		e.g. Reinforcement	5000 kg	internal finishes)		2 kg	8 kg		
0.1	Demolition: Toxio/Hazardous/Conteminated Material	a.d. Formwork	250 kg			O kg	0 kg		
	Treatment			\sim					
0.2	Major Lemonor Works			\sim					
0.3	Temporary Support to Adjacent Structures			\sim					
0.4	Specialist Ground Works			15 mm mt mt h	Con by second of stand of the		11 300 50		
	SLORTLCUM	Concrete	14,200 kg	200 years product life	Can be recycled at and of the		325.40		
		Real	147.854.1m	150 years product life.	Can be recycled at end of life		147,884 kg		
		Adhesive	10 kg	110 years product its	Can not be recycled at the end of life				
		Plantic	0 kg	50 years product He	Can be recycled at end of life		Okg		
21	Superstructure: Frame	Concrete	4,002 kg	150 years product life.	Can be recycled at end of life		4,002 kg		
		Timber	56 kg	200 year product life	Can be recycled at end of life		56 kg		
		Steel	346 kg	150 years product life.	Can be recycled at end of life		346 kg		
22	Superstructure: Upper Floom	änber	81 kg	200 year product life	Can be recycled at end of life		81 lg		
		conorete	9,756 kg	150 years product life.	Can be recycled at end of life		9,758 kg		
		atomi (95 kg	150 years product life.	Can be recycled at end of life		95 kg		
23	Superstructure: Roof	Asphat	3 kg		Can be recycled at end of life		3 kg		
		ineuellon Deute	11 kg	80 years product life	Difficult to recycle at the end of its				
		A constanting	2161-0	bu years product the	Can be recycled at and of the		0 Kg		
		Aluminium	244 10	80 years product the	Can be recycled at and of the		244 10		
		schestve	1 kg	40 years product He	Can not be recycled at the end of life		- 10		
		concrete	449.10	150 years product ife.	Can be recycled at end of ife		440 kg		
		timber	7 kg	200 year product life	Can be recycled at end of life		7 kg		
		steel	2 lg	150 years product life.	Can be recycled at end of life		2 kg		
2.4	Superstructure: Stains and Ramps	concrete	298 kg	150 years product life.	Can be recycled at end of life		298 kg		
		stael	1 kg	150 years product life.	Can be recycled at end of life		1 kg		
		Umber	4 lg	200 year product life	Can be recycled at end of life		4 kg		
2.5	Superstructure: External Walls	Shel	48 kg	150 years product life.	Can be recycled at end of life		48 lg		
		Conomia	4,400 kg	150 years product life.	Can be recycled at end of life		4,400 kg		
		Planto	59 kg	50 years product He	Can be recycled at end of life		50 kg		
		Fbreglass	8 kg	50 years product He	Can be recycled at end of life		8 kg		
		Insulation	16 kg	80 years product life	Difficult to recycle at the end of life				
		Plaster	101 kg	55 years product life	Can be recycled at end of life		101 kg		
		paint	1 kg	10 years product ine	Can not be recycled at the end of the				
			0 kg	40 years product the	Can not be recycled at the end of the	-			
			101 kg	AD years product the	Can be reported at and of the	101.10	15 km		
		Inter	62 kg	200 year product life	Can be recycled at end of life		82 kg		
		plasterboard	1 kg	55 years product life	Can be recycled at end of life		1 kg		
2.6	Superstructure: Windows and External Doors	giazing	73 kg	150 years produit life	Can be recycled at end of life		73 kg		
		Aluminium	5 kg	80 years product life	Can be recycled at end of life		5 kg		
		steel	0 kg	150 years product life.	Can be recycled at end of life		0 kg		
		Sinber	1 kg	200 year product life	Can be recycled at end of life		1 kg		
		Insulation	0 kg	80 years product life	Difficult to recycle at the end of life				
2.7	Superstructure: Internal Walls and Partitions	planter	303 kg	55 years product life	Can be recycled at end of life		303 kg		
		concrete	4,405 kg	150 years product life.	Can be recycled at end of life		4,465 kg		
		aluminium	4 lg	80 years product life	Can be recycled at end of life		4 kg		
		paint	13 kg	10 years product life	Can not be recycled at the end of the				
		Pile Filter	010	50 years product the	Can be recycled at end of the		Ukg		
		plasterboard	110 km	55 years product ife	Can be recycled at and of its		110 km		
		Inter	18 kg	200 year product life	Can be recycled at end of life		18 kg		
2.8	Superstructure: Internal Doors	stawl	0 kg	150 years product life.	Can be recycled at end of ife		0 kg		
3	Finishes	Paint	5 kg	10 years product life	Can not be recycled at the end of life				
		Concrete	9 kg	150 years product life.	Can be recycled at end of life		9 kg		
		Plaster	169 kg	55 years product life	Can be recycled at end of life		169 kg		
		Timber	4 lg	200 year product life	Can be recycled at end of life		4 kg		
		Carpet	0 kg	50 years product Ife	Can be recycled or reused at the end of life		0 kg		
4	Fittings, furnishings & equipment (FFE)	stael	1 kg	150 years product life.	Can be recycled at end of life		1 kg		
		föreglass	458 kg	50 years product He	Can be recycled at end of life		458 kg		
		plexito	22 kg	50 years product Ife	Can be recycled at end of life		22 lg		
		a de la d	7kg	40 years product He	Can not be recycled at the end of life				
•	Since (MDP)	Definerente	41g	150 years product ife.	Can not be recycled at and of the		4 kg		
		reulation	110	80 years product life	Difficult to recycle at the end of its				
		copper	25 kg	20 years product life	Can be recycled at end of ife		25 kg		
		Planto	13 kg	20 years product life	Can be recycled at end of life		13 kg		
		rubber	13 kg	20 years product life	Can be recycled at end of life		13 kg		
		electrical equipt	13 kg	15 years product ife	Can be recycled or reused at the end of life	13 lg			
		Brass	1 kg	20 years product life	Can be recycled at end of life		1 kg		
		Concrete	113 kg	150 years product life.	Can be recycled at end of life		113 kg		
6	Prefebricated Buildings and Building Units	Aluminium	0 kg	80 years product life	Can be recycled at end of life		0 kg		
7	Work to Existing Building								
8	External works	Steel	2 kg	150 years product life.	Can be recycled at end of life		2 kg		
		Timber	55 kg	200 year product life	Can be recycled at end of life		55 kg		
		Reich	2,309 kg	150 years product ife.	Can be recycled at and of the Can be recycled or revend at the and of the	740	2,360 kg		
		lamante.	748 kg	151 years product ife.	Can be recycled or related at the end of the	746 kg	040		
		Aschalt	710	80 years product life	Can be recycled at and of its		7.00		
			183 530 1-			11/1-	100.000		
		TOTAL	100,000 10			11410	100,400 10		
		Material Intensity (kg/m2 GIA)	6 kg H=2 GIA		0 kp/m2 GIA	6 light2 GIA			

Confirm here whether Assessment 1 or Assessment 2 (see below) is to form the bacis of design decisions	Assessment 1
--	--------------

ASSESSMENT 1 - ourrent status of the electricity grid

	GWP POTENTIAL FOR ALL LIPE-CVCLE MODULES' (NgCODA)	Requestored (or Magazia)	Product slage (LgCCCs)	Construction process o	Uw Hige PgCCbd								End of Life (Rel.) single (b)			ind of Life (Bok.) singe (LgCCCA)			TOTAL Medden A.C	Receive and lands beyond the system boundary (bgCCCs)
		(NeCODA)		Module A.			_		-	**				Medule	c		N/CDH			
Rabing states	d salagery		buil es buil	PAT .	(M)	P 10	947	(page	847	(84) 1	M	(P2)	124	(F3)	101	199				
8.1	Densition Task/Nacedous/Contactinated Material Tradition												a ly cost	014 0000	0 Ng C C De	0140000	Big CODe			
63	Repr Denoblen Works				_				_						0140034	010000	100,078 14(000)	Big CODe		
63	Temporary Russel & Adjacent Ministers										Ν			0 Ng C020	814 000	010000	010000	Big CODe		
0.4	Ryectabel Drown/Works													010000	014 0000	010000	0140000	Big CODe		
6.0	Temporary Chemise Mola													0 kg 0000	010000	Dig CODe	010000	Big CODe		
	Relativelys		4,431,183 bg CCDe	758,308 kg-000k	308,455 bg CC29	-1,00 kg 0004	e Ny CODA		388 kg CC28					-				107, 0713g 000e		
2.1	Repeaturize Pane		4,887,433 kg CCDe	608,872 bg-CCDe	417,013 kg CC26	0 Ng 0000	340 kg CCDe		17,812 kg CCD+			/		*****		-		-00°,111 kg 000k		
33	Repeaturizers Lipper Prices		1,788,830 kg CCD+	174,411 bg 000b	20,281 kg C03e	0 NgC CDe	e la cost		8 NJ CC24									74,6683g (700e		
23	Rependiculum Red		10,010 kg CODe	20,734 kg 0024	2,004 Ng CCDe	e NgC COM	IN STRENG CODE		31,862 kg CCD4								172,384 56,000	Not by CODe		
2.4	Rependiculars State and Ramps		60,600 kg CCCb	8,248 (g) 0026	1,473 kg C03e	e NgC COM	enjocen		1,277 10 0004								78,308 kg CCDe	which is a Code		
2.0	Rependiculars External Visite		2,817,411 (g CCD)	BOR, TAN NG CODE	140,430 kg CC0e	010000	e la cost		MS/FISING CODE									Here by Code		
2.0	Rependiculars: Windows and External Doors		490,400 bg CCDa	160,001 kg/CC24	7,400 kg C00e	e NgC COM	IS,073 Mg CCDM		668,202 kg CCD+			\mathbf{i}						A, KI Lig Citle		
37	Repeaturizes Internet Webs and Partitions		20,200 kg CCCb	7,530 kg CO26	4,081 Ng CCDe	e Ny CON	sty cos		8 NJ CO24			\		******			48,353 14 0034	-4,40 kg C02e		
2.8	Rependicularie Internel Doors		1,130 kg CCDk	372 No CODe	113 14 0034	3 Ng 0000	410,000		8 Ng C026						8140034		2,700 kg CCDe	with by CODe		
3	Pristan .		148,738 kg CC0e	60,400 kg CCD4	8,471 kg C024	0140000	C Ng C CD		30,707 \$2,000							-	ses,em lajocea	and by CODe		
	Mings, Scrackings & explored		1,353,346 kg CCDe	MO, MM Ng CCOM	71,001 62,0006	0 NgC CD4	e Ny CODA		3,210,700 kg CCD+		V			-		-		42,871 kg CO2e		
•	Revises (MEP)		604,338 kg CCDe	40,141 kg CCD+	44,739 kg 000a		40,388 M CCD		2,275,534 kg CC24		75,660,388 kg CO3e 0 kg CO3e	555,431 bg-000a		-		-		188, 899 kg CO2a		
	Period Automatical Buildings and Building Units		0 kg CCDe	8 NJ CC20	0 Ng CCDe	0 NgC CDe	e Ny CODA		0 10 0000					010000	010000	010000	0 kg C CD+	Big CODe		
7	Work to Evaluing Building		0 kg CCDe	8 Ng CC20	0 Ng CCDe	0 NgC CDe	e Ny CODA		0 10 0000		\rightarrow			010000	010000	010000	010000	Big CODe		
	Edenativida		20,075 1g 0006	20,200 kg CCDa	10,000 kg CCC0+	0 NgC CDe	e Ny CODA		20,000 kg CCD+					-			65,345 kg CCDe	1,817 kg (100+		
	TOTAL 1g COM	sig cos	HERACHING CODE	Statistic Process	CORPORATING CODE	4,000 kg CODe	All Lines of Con-	e la coa	CONT, MIT No COOM	6 Ng C026	75,865,388 kg CODe	888,431 bg CDD+	e Ng Cook			-		-134,110 kg C03k		
	TOTAL - Ng CODeAnd GA	Ong CODING GA	SH Ng COMMO GA	IN NY COSMINS ON	In hy CODAND GIA	Disp Column Can		ong Colonia dia	201 Mg CODWING GA	a Na CODANG GIA	2,000 kg CODMIND GM	18 by COlumn DIA						Hing Colombia Dia		
Nates.		Council and a diversity		-									_							

- Types in the second of the second of the second second and a second part of the second part of the second part of the second se Second seco

Mandalan tark for consider

ASSESSMENT 2 - expected decarbonication of the electricity grid

<table-container>Market in the state in the s</table-container>	Der Instantik der Milder oder Andelsen																										
Image Image <t< td=""><td></td><td>(rifcord</td><td>Requestered (or Miganic)</td><td>Product stage (LgCCDs)</td><td colspan="3">CO24) Construition process stage (NgCO24)</td><td colspan="8">Une stage (bgCCCs)</td><td colspan="7">Une wings (bgCCDs)</td><td colspan="4">End of Life (Bok.) stage (LgCCCs)</td><td>system boundary (bpCDDs)</td></t<>		(rifcord	Requestered (or Miganic)	Product stage (LgCCDs)	CO24) Construition process stage (NgCO24)			Une stage (bgCCCs)								Une wings (bgCCDs)							End of Life (Bok.) stage (LgCCCs)				system boundary (bpCDDs)
			(hgC034)		Module A.									Module C				Magazine and									
Non-Standard <t< th=""><th>Rubling shows</th><th>d category</th><th></th><th>but a but</th><th>M</th><th>(M)</th><th>2</th><th>(P47)</th><th>(FA)*</th><th>947</th><th>1</th><th>3</th><th>(Frid</th><th>124</th><th>12</th><th>12</th><th>(FQ</th><th></th><th></th></t<>	Rubling shows	d category		but a but	M	(M)	2	(P47)	(FA)*	947	1	3	(Frid	124	12	12	(FQ										
10 spin-stand 10	0.1	Services Tax/Materia/Contentrated Material Tradition													014000	0 Ng 0000	0 Ng C C D H	0 N C C R	6 kg (112a								
1 Non-National Anti-Name No. No	0.3	Naja Denolition Monte														014003	-	NO, FRI NG COM	Dig CODe								
1 such and matched (m)	63	Temporary Report to Adjusted Rischards										\backslash			010000	0 Ng 0000	014 CC04	0140000	Dig CODe								
11 result	0.4	Ryaculai Drovel Works													014000	0 Ng 0000	0 Ng C024	0 Ng C020	6 Ng C C D								
1 44444 44.0 4 and 30 an	6.8	Temponery Chreneline Works													8 NJ 0000	8 NJ 00034	0 Ng C020	0 Ng C CD0	814 CC24								
11 4xxxxxxxxxxxxxxxxxxxxxxxxxxxxxxxxxxxx		Matura		4,431,183 (2009)	758,208 kg CCDs	208,46K bg CCD+	-1,100 kg 0004	Sig CON		260 kg CC24			/						187,478 kg 0004								
11 4-status tank 1.00000 1.0000 </td <td>20</td> <td>Repetitivities Parts</td> <td></td> <td>4,887,433 kg 0.004</td> <td>608,872 kg CCD4</td> <td>417,813 kg 000e</td> <td>0 10 0000</td> <td>Sto by CODe</td> <td></td> <td>17,812 kg CCDe</td> <td></td> <td></td> <td>/</td> <td></td> <td></td> <td></td> <td></td> <td></td> <td>087,144 kg CCD+</td>	20	Repetitivities Parts		4,887,433 kg 0.004	608,872 kg CCD4	417,813 kg 000e	0 10 0000	Sto by CODe		17,812 kg CCDe			/						087,144 kg CCD+								
13 series field 1.0.1 (s) 2.0.1 (s) 2.0.1 (s) 0.0.1 (s)	33	Repersionless Opper Press		1,788,830 kg 0006	174,411 16 0004	20,281 kg 0036	e Ng C CBA	s Ng CODA		0 kg C00e			•						74,847 kg C03e								
$ \begin{array}{ c c c c c c c c c c c c c c c c c c c$	23	Rependiculum Red		80,042 kg COD6	20,734 Ng C020	2,000 kg 0004	e Ne COR	NUCTING CODE		31,003 kg CODe								173,384 Ng CODA	940 kg CC29								
$ \begin{array}{ c c c c c c c c c c c c c c c c c c c$	34	Rependiculars Rain and Ramps		60,600 kg CCCb	A DAM NO CODE	1,473 10 0000	e Nacional	s Ng CODA		1,217 16 0006								19,308 kg CCD+	BOR NJ CODA								
$ \begin{array}{ c c c c c c c c c c c c c c c c c c c$	2.8	Rependiculum Releval Visits		2,817,411 bg CODe	508, 184 kg CC24	140,430 kg CC24	0 Ng 000 N	engroom		803,413 kg CO36									484.10 0004								
$ \begin{array}{ c c c c c c c c c c c c c c c c c c c$	2.8	Rependentian Windows and Edward Doors		400,000 kg CCDk	160,001 kg CCDk	7,400 kg CCDe	e Nacional	13,073 Ng CCDN		858,302 kg CCDe			\mathbf{i}			~~~~~~			4,621 (4,020)								
$ \begin{array}{ c c c c c c c c c c c c c c c c c c c$	37	Rependentians: Internal Webs and Partitions		21,200 10 0020	7,030 kg CCDa	4,001 10 0000	e Naccon	s Ng CODA		6 M CO24								eritas Pilocan	-4,483 by CCDe								
1 Name 1	2.8	Regenetration: Internal Doors		1,130 kg CCSk	372 50 0005	113 14 0034	3 10 0000	410,000		8 NJ 0004						a ly cost	-	2,780 kg CCD+	403 10 0004								
No. (20, 10, 10, 10, 10, 10, 10, 10, 10, 10, 1		714144		145,728 Ng CCDH	60,400 kg CCD+	8,471 kg CC24	0 Ng 0000	s Ng CODA		312,707 14 0004								esten Miccon	600 kg C00+								
	4	Pillings, fundings & explored		1,350,366 (g) 0006	HO, ANH NG CODM	71,881 54 0005	e Nacional	s Ny CODA		3,210,700 by CODe		V			-		-		-13,587 5(000)								
I Name and adding units adding		Revise MPP		504.238 No CCDe	10.111 to CO2+	44.720 to C02e	-1.721 McCDA	40.340 to CCDs		2.270.034 to CODe		NUMBER OF COME	MALAST NO CODE		-		-	-	-61.48 to 000e								
1 National Samp 0 <	•	Period and Buildings and Building Units		0 10 0000	8 Ng C020	0 10 000+	e NgC COM	Sig CON		8 kg C024					8 NJ CO20	010000	010000	0 10 0000	010000								
1 1	7	York is Dailing Building		0 10 0000	0 Ng C020	0100000	0 NgC COM	a Ng CCDM		0 10 0000		\sim	_		010000	0 10 0000	010000	0 10 0000	0 10 0000								
		Edenativola		20,000 kg 000a	20,200 kg 0026	10,000 kg (0004	e Ny CON	s Ng CODA		20,000 kg CCDa								60,348 kg CCD+	Lastrag code								
		TOTAL Ng COM	6 Ng C024	HEREIN IN COM	STREETS PERCEN	Losides Phycos	4,000 kg CODA	40,000 to COM	ety coa	CORP. MIT No. CODA	6 Ng CO26	BUDBLING Ng CODA	666,401 kg CDDa	e se coas					-136,110 kg CO36								
		TOTAL - Ng CODMHO GIA	eng cosund das	Statuy Column dia	In ag COlarino GA	St by COMMON	e sy cosund dia		O NO CODING ON	291 Ng COberns GA	e Na COSMIS GIA	Last by Costing OA	18 by COlumn DA						H Ng CODMHD DIA								

Datase "A final-balance index for the instant and operating expended association of the electricity get. ¹ Final-balance index is allowed and C D balance the associated by the spectrum by a final balance in the stant balance in the spectrum by a stant association operating balance in the stant bala Mandalary sells for completion 160.



90 High Holborn London WC1V 6LJ

T 0203 544 5400

www.scotchpartners.com